
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

AMENDED MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   May 18, 2020 

TO:    MWA Board Members 

CC:       MWA Staff  

FROM:  Michael McCoy, Executive Director 

RE:    Wednesday, May 20, 2020 Board Meeting 
This month’s board meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at 5:45 pm in the Board 
Room at Central Office (300 East Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa). If you have 
questions about any items listed below, please call me at 323-6535 (w) or 707-3869 (c). I look 
forward to seeing you on Wednesday. 

The following numbered items correspond with the number of the item on the agenda: 

Consent Agenda Items for Approval  

8. Resolution 05-20-03 – Approval of Municipal Solid Waste Extension with Ankeny
Sanitation, Inc.- Action for Approval
This extension extends the municipal solid waste services provided by Ankeny Sanitation,
Inc. for one year.

9. Resolution 05-20-04 – Approval of Municipal Solid Waste Extension with Waste
Management - Action for Approval
This extension extends the municipal solid waste services provided by Waste Management
for one year.

10. Resolution 05-20-05 – Approval of Municipal Solid Waste Extension with Waste
Connections - Action for Approval
This extension extends the municipal solid waste services provided by Waste
Connections for one year.

11. Resolution 05-20-06 – Approval of Tire Collection Contract with Waste Connections
- Action for Approval
This extension agreement grants the hauler the right to collect scrap tires from Metro Waste
Authority (MWA) facilities and/or from communities that offer an annual scrap tire drop-off for
residents. MWA will compensate Waste Connections for the collection of the tires.

Page 1 of 96



Regular Agenda Items for Approval 

12. Resolution 05-20-07 – Approval to Amend the Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. Municipal
Solid Waste to Add the Cities of Clive, Grimes, Johnston, and Polk City to the
Contract – Action Item
This first amendment to the agreement for solid waste collection adds the cities of Clive,
Grimes, Johnston, and Polk City to the original contract for service. In addition, the
amendment addresses the handling of carts for the four additional cities.

13. Resolution 05-20-08 – Approval of Recommendation of Executive Director’s FY
19/20 Performance Review and FY 20/21 Salary Adjustment – Action Item
A performance review for the Executive Director, Michael McCoy, was performed by the
Chair of the Metro Waste Authority Board of Directors, Mark Holm, and a committee
comprised of David Gisch, Threase Harms, and Vice Chair, Ron Pogge. Thirteen
performance reviews were submitted and reviewed. Overall performance ratings and
comments were positive and indicated that McCoy exceeded Board expectations for FY
19/20.

14. Resolution 05-20-09 – Approval of Amendment to Ground Lease and Operation
Maintenance Agreement for Metropolitan Salt Storage Facility on Metro Waste Authority
Property – Action Item
Metro Waste Authority (MWA) and the Cities of West Des Moines, Urbandale, Johnston,
Clive, Windsor Heights, Waukee, Grimes, Des Moines, and Pleasant Hill have been parties
to an agreement for the salt storage facility located on MWA property since August 2014.
MWA gave notice of termination only to the City of Des Moines, electing to terminate the
agreement and requiring the City of Des Moines to remove the ten thousand ton capacity
building from the property. However, the agreement does not allow for MWA to terminate
with only the City of Des Moines and not the other cities. The City of Des Moines has agreed
to withdraw and provide a bill of sale to MWA, rescinding the notice of termination and
allowing the City of Des Moines to leave the building on MWA property. Terms of the
amended agreement are effective October 1, 2020.

15. Resolution 05-20-10 – Approval of P-60 Building Expansion Proposal at Metro Park East
Landfill – Action Item
Five (5) bids were received for construction and expansion of the Metro Park East building 4
improvements and relocation of electrical panels. Accurate Commercial Construction is the
recommended contractor with the lowest most responsive total alternate bid of $528,464.00.
Accurate Commercial Construction’s bid was reviewed by HDR.

Page 2 of 96



Board of Directors 
2020 Calendar Year 

Mark Holm 
Chair 

Ron Pogge 
Vice-Chair 

Dean O’Connor 
Altoona 

Mark Holm 
Ankeny 

Wes Enos 
Bondurant 

John Edwards 
Clive 

Joe Gatto 
Des Moines 

Steve Allen 
Elkhart 

David Gisch 
Grimes 

Tom Cope 
Johnston 

Bill Roberts 
Mitchellville 

Ed Kuhl 
Norwalk 

Dean Cooper 
Pleasant Hill 

Rob Sarchet 
Polk City 

Tom Hockensmith 
Polk County 

Gerald Lane 
Runnells 

Ron Pogge 
Urbandale 

Steve Gaer 
West Des Moines 

Threase Harms 
Windsor Heights 

Michael McCoy 
 Executive Director 

Metro Waste Authority 
Board Meeting 
May 20, 2020  

MWA Central Office 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

5:45 pm 

Amended Agenda 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call

2. Approval of Regular Agenda

3. Public Forum

CONSENT AGENDA 
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate 
discussion unless someone, Board or Public, requests an item be removed for 
consideration: 

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 11

5. Consideration of Minutes of April 15, 2020, Metro Waste Authority Board
Meeting – Action for Approval

6. Resolution 05-20-01 - Consideration of March 2020, Financial Statements –
Action to Receive and File

7. Resolution 05-20-02 – Consideration of April 2020, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

8. Resolution 05-20-03 – Approval of Municipal Solid Waste Extension with
Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. – Action for Approval

9. Resolution 05-20-04 – Approval of Municipal Solid Waste Extension with Waste
Management – Action for Approval

10. Resolution 05-20-05 – Approval of Municipal Solid Waste Extension with Waste
Connections – Action for Approval

11. Resolution 05-20-06 – Approval of Tire Collection Contract with Waste
Connections – Action for Approval

END CONSENT AGENDA 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval – Items 12 through 15 

12. Resolution 05-20-07 – Approval to Amend the Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. Municipal
Solid Waste to Add the Cities of Clive, Grimes, Johnston, and Polk City to the
Contract – Action Item

13. Resolution 05-20-08 – Approval of Recommendation of Executive Director’s FY
19/20 Performance Review and FY 20/21 Salary Adjustment – Action Item

Page 3 of 96



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

MWA Board Meeting 
May 20, 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

14. Resolution 05-20-09 – Approval of Amendment to Ground Lease and Operation 
Maintenance Agreement for Metropolitan Salt Storage Facility on Metro Waste 
Authority Property – Action Item 
 

15. Resolution 05-20-10 – Approval of P-60 Building Expansion Proposal at Metro 
Park East Landfill – Action Item 

 
16. Director’s Report 
 
17. Chair’s Report 
 
18. General Board Discussion and Other Business 
 
19. Correspondence 

 
20. Adjournment 

 
 
June Executive/Finance Meeting: June 3, 2020, MWA Central Office, 300 E. 
Locust Street, Ste 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 12:00 pm. 
 
June Board Meeting: June 17, 2020, MWA Central Office, 300 E. Locust Street, 
Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 5:45 pm. 
 

 

Page 4 of 96



300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

April 15, 2020, Unofficial Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting Minutes 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was held at Metro Waste Authority’s Central Office. Ron Pogge, vice chair,
called the April 15, 2020, Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting to order at 5:45 pm. A
quorum was present. This meeting was primarily conducted electronically due to federal
and state government recommendations in response to COVID-19 pandemic conditions,
and Governor Reynold’s Proclamation of Disaster Emergency dated March 19, 2020.

Roll Call – MWA Board Representatives/Alternates in Attendance
Dean O’Connor, Altoona
Mark Holm, Ankeny
Wes Enos, Bondurant
John Edwards, Clive
Joe Gatto, Des Moines
David Gisch, Grimes
Tom Cope, Johnston
Bill Roberts, Mitchellville
Ed Kuhl, Norwalk
Dean Cooper, Pleasant Hill
Rob Sarchet, Polk City
Tom Hockensmith, Polk County
Ron Pogge, Urbandale
Threase Harms, Windsor Heights

2. Approval of Regular Agenda
Moved by Clive, seconded by Windsor Heights, to approve the April 15, 2020, board
meeting agenda as presented. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

3. Public Forum
There were no requests to address the Board.
______________________________________________________________________
CONSENT AGENDA
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate discussion unless
someone, Board or Public, requests that an item be removed for consideration:

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 9
Moved by Polk County, seconded by Altoona, to approve the Consent Agenda, items 4
through 9. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

5. Consideration of Minutes of March 25, 2020, Metro Waste Authority Board
Meeting – Action for Approval

6. Resolution 04-20-01 - Consideration of February 2020, Financial Statement –
Action to Receive and File

Page 5 of 96



7. Resolution 04-20-02 - Consideration of March 2020, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

8. Resolution 04-20-03 - Approval of Extension of Compost It! Yard Waste Collection and
Composting Agreement – Action for Approval

9. Resolution 04-20-04 - Approval of Change of Metro Waste Authority Principals for Credit
Card Banking Services with TCM Back, N.A. and VISA – Action for Approval

END CONSENT AGENDA 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval - Items 11 through 16 

10. Discussion of Opening the Metro Northwest Transfer Station on Saturday for Residential
Drop-Offs
Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, reported a modification to the 2020-2021 key priorities
timeline, which allows Metro Northwest Transfer Station (MNTS) to open residential drop
off on Saturdays, beginning May 2020. Facility hours on Saturdays will be 8:00 am to
1:00 pm. Staff identified the need to adjust the timeframe of this priority to accommodate
communities who have been impacted by postponed spring clean ups, and to alleviate
increased traffic at Metro Park East Landfill (MPE) due to COVID-19.

Staff is finalizing MNTS traffic flow plans and pricing. Residents will be able to dispose of
general household trash, excluding tires and appliances.

11. Resolution 04-20-05 - Approval of Water Tanker Truck Purchase for Metro Park West
Landfill - Action Item
Moved by Altoona, seconded by Des Moines, to approve Resolution 04-20-05. Motion
carried unanimously by voice vote.

Irlbeck reported the tanker truck at Metro Park West Landfill (MPW) is used to haul and
recirculate leachate at the landfill. Replacement of the current truck was budgeted for FY
20/21; however, staff are concerned with its extensive rusting and the potential for it to
fail. Several replacement options were explored, and staff recommend purchasing a
gently used truck for $127,312.00. Funds are available in the FY 19/20 capital
equipment budget.

12. Resolution 04-20-06 - Approval of Tanker Trailer Purchase for Metro Park East Landfill -
Action Item
Moved by Altoona, seconded by Des Moines, to approve Resolution 04-20-06. Motion
carried unanimously by voice vote.

McCoy reported similarities to the tanker truck purchase for MPW; however, the trailer
for MPE has been out of commission due to leaking for some time. Replacing the trailer
will reduce costs associated with paying a third-party vendor to haul the leachate from
MPE to Des Moines Metropolitan Wastewater Reclamation Authority. The tanker trailer
was not budgeted for FY 19/20, but funds are available in the capital equipment budget.

13. Resolution 04-20-07 - Approval of Replacement of Metro Park East Inbound Vehicle
Scale and Related Accessories and Installation - Action Item
Moved by Clive, seconded by Altoona, to approve Resolution 04-20-07. Motion carried
unanimously by voice vote.

Page 6 of 96



Art Kern, compliance coordinator, reported after recent inspection it was determined the 
inbound scale at MPE is at risk of failing. The Mettler Toledo 7531 Truckmate Scale from 
J.A. King Precision Measurement Professionals is the only model and brand compatible 
with the existing concrete foundation, and consequently was the only bid received. 
Replacement of the scale was not budgeted in FY 19/20, but funds are available in the 
capital equipment budget. 

14. Resolution 04-20-08 - Approval of Trash Cart Purchase for Municipal Solid Waste 
Programs - Action Item
Moved by Clive, seconded by Altoona, to approve Resolution 04-20-08. Motion carried 
unanimously by voice vote.
Irlbeck reported several new communities have expressed interest in having MWA 
manage their municipal solid waste contracts. To prepare for the additional 
households, 17,550, 95-gallon MWA branded carts must be purchased. Distribution of 
the new carts will need to take place in advance of the start of the new contract period, 
assumed to be July 1, 2020.

15. Resolution 04-20-09 - Approval of Prepayment of the North Dallas Landfill Note - Action 
Item
Moved by Altoona, seconded by Des Moines, to approve Resolution 04-20-09. Motion 
carried unanimously by voice vote.
Matt Stoffel, PFM, reported MWA currently has a loan with North Dallas Landfill Inc. 
that carries an interest rate of 3.52%. Early payment of the outstanding balance will 
simplify the loan agreement with Polk County, and will save MWA $40,000 over the 
next three years.

16. Resolution 04-20-10 - Approval of Metro Waste Authority Executive Director to Set 
Agency Purchasing Limits - Action Item
Moved by Altoona, seconded by Windsor Heights, to approve Resolution 04-20-10. 
Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.
McCoy reported the executive director purchasing limit will not change; however, this 
gives the executive director the ability to adjust and modify current spending limits as 
needed. Annually, the purchasing limits will be brought to the board for approval.

17. Director’s Report
McCoy reported the houseside hazardous waste program has completed 154 
deliveries and 32 pick-ups since March 19, 2020.
McCoy reported the liquids program at MPE has been suspended due to a
closure of the facility that regularly provides fly ash, which is necessary for the
liquid solidification process.
McCoy reported the cardboard container at Metro Hazardous Waste Drop-Off
has been temporarily moved to Bondurant City Hall for residents to utilize. A
Saturday route has been implemented in addition to regular collection of the 
cardboard drop-off containers across the metro.

Page 7 of 96



Irlbeck reported the launch of online sales for Compost It! stickers and bags, as 
well as large and extra item trash stickers, on the MWA website in light of 
COVID-19.  

Irlbeck reported early discussion of MWA providing recycling assistance for rural 
communities in Dallas County, which includes creation of a collection route.  

McCoy reported the Des Moines owned salt storage facility, located at MNTS, is 
being transferred back to MWA’s possession. The building will remain on MWA 
property and title will be transferred back to MWA. The City of Des Moines will 
continue to store its remaining salt supply there through September 2020. More 
to come during the May MWA board meeting. 

Irlbeck reported intent to launch glass drop-off containers. The new program will 
be similar to the cardboard drop-offs throughout Polk County. MWA staff are in 
contact with city managers to discuss details and logistics.  

The May executive finance meeting will be held on Wednesday, May 6, 2020, at 
Central Office (300 E. Locust St. Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa) at 12:00 pm. 

The May board meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 
100, Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, May 20, 2020, at 5:45 pm. 

18. Chair’s Report
Mark Holm reported the 2020 executive director review is being planned for the June
board meeting.

19. General Board Discussion and Other Business
No report.

20. Adjournment
Moved by Clive, seconded by Johnston, to adjourn the April 15, 2020, board meeting.
Motion carried unanimously by voice vote. Meeting adjourned at 6:32 pm.

__________________________________ _____________________________ 
  Michael McCoy, Executive Director   Mark E. Holm, Chair 

Page 8 of 96



Page 9 of 96



Page 10 of 96



Page 11 of 96



Page 12 of 96



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

May 20, 2020 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 08 

ITEM: 
Approval of Extension to the Municipal Solid Waste Agreement for Bondurant, Norwalk, and 
Windsor Heights.  

SUMMARY: 
This extension extends the municipal solid waste services provided by Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. 
(ASI) for one year. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Metro Waste Authority has managed the solid waste contract for Bondurant, Norwalk, and 
Windsor Heights since 2013. Through a competitive bidding process, ASI was selected as the 
qualified vendor for this service and has performed to contract specifications. This extension is 
the first of the three optional one-year extensions. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Notice of Exercise of Option to Extend Agreement 

CONTACTS: 
Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, 515.323.6501 

Page 13 of 96



Metro Waste Authority 
Notice of Extension—Agreement for the Collection of Solid Waste 

THIS NOTICE OF RENEWAL is made and entered into this ____ day of ________ 2020, 
by and between Metro Waste Authority, an entity organized pursuant to Section 28E of the Iowa 
Code, (“MWA”) and Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. (“Contractor.”) 

WHEREAS, by agreement dated December 10, 2012, the Contractor and MWA entered 
into an Agreement for the Collection of Solid Waste (the “Agreement”), as amended, wherein 
Contractor agreed to collect, transport and dispose at the MWA Landfill or Transfer Station all 
solid waste material from eligible residences of the Participating Member Communities from July 
1, 2013, through June 30, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2 of the Agreement provides that the term for which the Contractor 
shall provide the Collection Services under this Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2013 (the 
Commencement Date), and expire on June 30, 2020 (the “Expiration Date”). The Agreement may 
be extended for up to three (3) one (1) year periods at the sole discretion of MWA; and 

WHEREAS, in the event MWA decides to exercise its option to extend the Agreement, it 
shall give written notice to the Contractor not less than ninety (90) days and not more than one 
hundred twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of the then current term of this Agreement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants given each to the 
other, the parties hereby acknowledge the following: 

1. Pursuant to Section 2 of the Agreement, MWA provides notice of its initial election
to extend the term of the Agreement for an additional one year period. 

2. The renewal period shall be effective from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021.
3. All other terms of the Agreement and any amendments shall remain effective and

enforceable as written. 

METRO WASTE AUTHORITY: 

By:____________________________________________ 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

ANKENY SANITATION, INC.: 

_______________________________________________ 

By_____________________________________________ 

Page 14 of 96



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

May 20, 2020 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 09 

ITEM: 
Approval of Extension to the Municipal Solid Waste Agreement for Altoona, Pleasant Hill, 
Runnells, and Mitchellville.  

SUMMARY: 
This extension extends the municipal solid waste services provided by Waste Management for 
one year. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Metro Waste Authority has managed the solid waste contract for Altoona, Pleasant Hill, 
Runnells, and Mitchellville since 2011. Through a competitive bidding process, Waste 
Management was selected as the qualified vendor for this service and has performed to 
contract specifications. This extension is the second of the three optional one-year extensions. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Notice of Exercise of Option to Extend Agreement 

CONTACTS: 
Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, 515.323.6501 

Page 15 of 96



Metro Waste Authority 
Notice of Extension—Agreement for the Collection of Solid Waste 

 
THIS NOTICE OF RENEWAL is made and entered into this ____ day of ________ 2020, 

by and between Metro Waste Authority, an entity organized pursuant to Section 28E of the Iowa 
Code, (“MWA”) and Waste Management of Iowa, Inc. (“Contractor.”) 

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2011, the Contractor and MWA entered into an Agreement for 
the Collection of Solid Waste (“Agreement”) wherein Contractor agreed to provide solid waste 
collection services for certain residents within the MWA service area of participating member 
communities from October 1, 2011, through June 30, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, at the time the Agreement was executed, the participating member 
communities were the cities of Altoona, Pleasant Hill and Runnells—thereafter, in 2012, the 
Agreement was amended to include the City of Mitchellville as an additional participating 
member; and  

WHEREAS, Section 2 of the Agreement allows for MWA to extend the Agreement on 
three (3) separate occasions, each for a one-year period; and  

WHEREAS, in the event MWA decides to exercise its option to extend the Agreement, it 
shall give written notice to the Contractor not less than ninety (90) days and not more than one 
hundred twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of the then current term of this Agreement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants given each to the 
other, the parties hereby acknowledge the following: 

1. Pursuant to Section 2 of the Agreement, MWA provides notice of its second 
election to extend the term of the Agreement for an additional one year period. 

2. The renewal period shall be effective from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. 
3. All other terms of the Agreement and any amendments shall remain effective and 

enforceable as written. 

 
METRO WASTE AUTHORITY: 
 
By:____________________________________________ 
 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 
 
WASTE MANAGEMENT OF IOWA, INC.: 
 
_______________________________________________ 
 
By_____________________________________________ 

Page 16 of 96



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

May 20, 2020 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 10 

ITEM: 
Approval of Extension to the Municipal Solid Waste Agreement for West Des Moines 

SUMMARY: 
This extension extends the municipal solid waste services provided by Waste Connections in 
the City of West Des Moines for one year. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Metro Waste Authority has managed the solid waste contract for the City of West Des Moines 
since 2010. Through a competitive bidding process, Waste Connections was selected as the 
qualified vendor for this service and has performed to contract specifications. This extension is 
the third, and final, of the three optional one-year extensions. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Notice of Exercise of Option to Extend Agreement 

CONTACTS: 
Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, 515.323.6501 

Page 17 of 96



Metro Waste Authority 
Notice of Extension—Agreement for the Collection of Solid Waste 

THIS NOTICE OF RENEWAL is made and entered into this ____ day of ________ 2020, 
by and between Metro Waste Authority, an entity organized pursuant to Section 28E of the Iowa 
Code, (“MWA”) and Waste Connections of Iowa, Inc. (“Contractor.”) 

WHEREAS, on June 16, 2010, the Contractor and MWA entered into an Agreement for 
the Collection of Solid Waste (“Agreement”) wherein Contractor agreed to provide solid waste 
collection services for certain residents within the MWA service area of participating member 
communities from November 29, 2010, through June 30, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2 of the Agreement allows for MWA to extend the Agreement on 
three (3) separate occasions, each for a one-year period; and  

WHEREAS, in the event MWA decides to exercise its option to extend the Agreement, it 
shall give written notice to the Contractor not less than ninety (90) days and not more than one 
hundred twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of the then current term of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, MWA has exercised two (2) of those extension periods. 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants given each to the 

other, the parties hereby acknowledge the following: 
1. Pursuant to Section 2 of the Agreement, MWA provides notice of its third election

to extend the term of the Agreement for an additional one year period. 

2. The renewal period shall be effective from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021.
3. All other terms of the Agreement and any amendments shall remain effective and

enforceable as written. 

METRO WASTE AUTHORITY: 

By:____________________________________________ 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

WASTE CONNECTIONS OF IOWA, INC.: 

_______________________________________________ 

By_____________________________________________ 

Page 18 of 96



Metro Waste Authority Board 

Monthly Board Meeting 

May 20, 2020 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 11 

ITEM: 
Extension of the Scrap Tire Collection Agreement with Waste Connections. 

SUMMARY: 
This extension agreement grants the hauler the right to collect scrap tires from Metro Waste 
Authority (MWA) facilities and/or from communities that offer an annual scrap tire drop-off for 
residents. MWA will compensate Waste Connections for the collection of the tires.  

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
The extension agreement pays Waste Connections a rate per ton for tires collected, plus a 
container fee and a demurrage fee when applicable. There is no change in pricing, which is 
most commonly $140/ton. The cost of a 40-yard container is $145 per use. The demurrage fee 
is $40 per load. Residents bring tires to MPE, MPW and MHWD, and all communities in the 
service area are eligible to participate in MWA’s scrap tire program once per year. The 
community drop-offs give residents an opportunity to dispose of tires free of charge to minimize 
dumping. Waste Connections will deliver the tires to Liberty Tire where the tires are 
processed/recycled. This extension is the second of two eligible one-year extensions.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
Costs are budgeted within the Recycling budget. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Extension Agreement for Scrap Tire Collection. 

CONTACT: 
Cassie Riley, community relations coordinator, 515.323.6502 

Page 19 of 96



Extension of Metro Waste Authority 

Residential & Facility Scrap Tire Programs Agreement 

THIS EXTENSION is made and entered into this __ day of May 2020 by and 

between Metro Waste Authority, an entity organized pursuant to Section 28E of the Iowa Code, 

(hereinafter referred to as "MW A") and Waste Connections of Iowa, Inc. (hereinafter referred to 

as "Contractor.") 

WHEREAS, in February of 2016, the Contractor and MW A entered into a Residential & 

Facility Scrap Tire Programs Agreement ("Original Agreement") wherein Contractor agreed to 

provide certain collection, transportation and processing services to assist MW A with a waste 

tire recycling program for a period of three (3) years from March 1, 2016, through February 28, 

2019;and 

WHEREAS, Sections 11 & 20 of the Original Agreement state that MWA may, at its sole 

discretion, elect to extend the contract for two separate one-year successive terms. 

WHEREAS, the MW A Board exercises its right to renew the contract for the second 

oneyear successive term. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants given each to the 

other, the parties hereby acknowledge the following: 

1. Pursuant to Sections 11 & 20 of the Amendment to the Original Agreement,

MW A exercises its right to renew the Original Agreement for the first one-year successive term. 

2. The renewal period shall last from March 1, 2020 through February 29, 2021

3. All other terms of the Original Agreement and Amendment shall remain effective

and enforceable as written. 

METRO WASTE AUTHORITY: 

By: _______________ _ 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

w ASTE CONNECTIONS OF row A, INC: 

By: _______________ _ 

Page 20 of 96



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

May 20, 2020  
AGENDA ITEM 12 

ITEM: 
Approval of Amendment to the Agreement for the Collection of Solid Waste between Metro 
Waste Authority and Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. 

SUMMARY:  
This first amendment to the agreement for solid waste collection adds the cities of Clive, 
Grimes, Johnston, and Polk City to the original contract for service. In addition, the amendment 
addresses the handling of carts for the four additional cities. Metro Waste Authority (MWA) can 
select the cart vendor of its choice, and during the optional one-year extension, the agency will 
purchase the carts and will be reimbursed through the city’s monthly payments.  

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
The original contract with Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. (ASI) provides solid waste collection for 
Bondurant, Norwalk, and Windsor Heights. MWA has managed the contract since 2013. 
Through a competitive bidding process, ASI was selected as the qualified vendor for this service 
and has performed to contract specifications. There are three optional one-year extensions 
available. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the approval. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The collection of solid waste is a pass-through expense from the hauler to the cities with no 
impact to the budget. The purchase of carts for the four additional communities passed at the 
April 2020 Board Meeting. The only remaining impact to the budget is from the funds that will be 
collected from the cities monthly to reimburse for MWA’s up-front cost associated with the carts. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Amendment to the Agreement for the Collection of Solid Waste between MWA and ASI. 

CONTACT: 
Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, 515.323.6501 

Page 21 of 96



First Amendment to the Agreement for the Collection of Solid Waste  
between Metro Waste Authority and 

Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. 
 

THIS AMENDMENT is made and entered into this ____ day of May 2020, by and between 
Metro Waste Authority, an entity organized pursuant to Section 28E of the Iowa Code, (hereinafter 
referred to as "Authority" or “MWA”) and Ankeny Sanitation, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as 
"Contractor.") 

WHEREAS, by agreement dated December 10, 2012, the Contractor and MWA entered 
into an Agreement for the Collection of Solid Waste (the “Agreement”), as amended, wherein 
Contractor agreed to collect, transport and dispose at the MWA Landfill or Transfer Station all 
solid waste material from eligible residences of the Participating Member Communities; and 

WHEREAS, by virtue of the Notice of Extension dated _______, 2020, MWA elected to 
extend the Agreement for a period of one (1) year—from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement provides that the Participating Member Communities are: 
Bondurant, Norwalk and Windsor Heights (“Existing Participants”); and 

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed to add additional communities to the Agreement. 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants given each to the 

other, the parties hereby acknowledge the following: 
A. Section 2—Term and Commencement of Performance—of the Agreement is 

eliminated and the following new Section 2 substituted: 
 

The initial term for which the Contractor shall provide the Collection Services under this 
Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2013 (the Commencement Date), and expire on June 30, 
2020 (the “Expiration Date”), and subject to earlier termination in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 13. The Agreement may be extended for up to three (3) one (1) year periods at the sole 
discretion of MWA. By virtue of the Notice of Extension dated _______, 2020, MWA elected to 
extend the Agreement for a period of one (1) year—from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. The 
Commencement Date for each Participating Member Community is as follows: 
 

• City of Bondurant   July 3, 2013 
• City of Norwalk   October 8, 2013 
• City of Windsor Heights  July 5, 2013 
• City of Clive   July 1, 2020  
• City of Johnston  July 1, 2020  
• City of Grimes   July 1, 2020  
• City of Polk City  July 1, 2020  
 
(The cities of Clive, Johnston, Grimes and Polk City shall be the “New Participants.”) 
 

In the event MWA exercises its option to extend under this paragraph, it shall give written notice 
to the Contractor of its election to extend the term of the Agreement for an additional one year 
term not less than ninety (90) days and not more than one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the 
expiration of the then current term of this Agreement. No notice of termination shall be required 

Page 22 of 96



by MWA if the Agreement is not extended. In the event MWA elects to extend the term of this 
Agreement as provided for herein, the terms of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect 
during the renewal term, unless otherwise amended by the parties. 

B. Section 4.2—Collection Carts—of the Agreement is eliminated and the following
new Section 4.2 substituted:
4.2.1  For the Existing Participants, Carts will be purchased by Contractor but

shall become the property of MWA at the end of the initial term. Rolling 
carts shall be Toter 48-gallon (Model 79248)or 96-gallon (Model 79296) 
EVR II Universal/Nestable sandstone body (Generation 2 lids in black) with 
serial numbers hot stamped, standard 10” sunburst wheels, and a minimum 
of a non-prorated 10-year warranty. No service provider logos will be 
permitted on the carts. A logo designed and approved by MWA will be hot 
stamped on two sides of the carts. 

Based on records provided by Participating Members, either a 48- or 96-
gallon cart will be provided to each eligible customer on or before the 
Commencement Date. The initial cart purchase by Contractor must include 
300 additional carts that specified in Exhibit A, Table of MWA’s Request 
for Proposals and addenda. There may be some residences that may receive 
more than one cart in the initial cart distribution. Subsequent, cart exchanges 
or deliveries will be handled as provided in Section 4.3 of this Agreement. 
For any cart exchange, the Contractor will be responsible for returning the 
retrieved cart to the inventory in a sanitary condition. As provided in Section 
4.3 of this Agreement, under specified circumstances, the Contractor may 
be entitled to charge MWA a Cart Exchange/Replacement Delivery Fee. 

The Contractor shall repair or provide sanitized replacements in accordance 
with the MWA policy for replacement of carts as specified in Section 4.3. 
Requests for replacement of existing carts must be handled within 5 
business days after the date the request is received. Repairs to existing carts 
must be handled within 3 business days from the time the request is 
received. The Contractor shall be responsible for managing and completing 
warranty work on the carts. Contractor shall be responsible for returning 
carts exchanged for a Residential Premise to the MWA cart inventory. 

4.2.2  Residents shall have the option of requesting an additional cart(s) for an 
additional fee. 

4.2.3  The Contractor shall follow the MWA Policy and Procedures for Cart 
Replacements as provided in Section 4.3. 

4.2.4 Carts for the New Participants shall be purchased by MWA, and the 
monthly cart amortization fee set forth in Section 7.3.5 shall not be paid to 
Contractor for such carts. MWA can elect to purchase whatever make, 
model or size of cart it chooses for such communities.  

Page 23 of 96



C. Section 7.3.5—Monthly Cart Amortization Fee—of the Agreement is eliminated
and the following new Section 7.3.5 substituted:
7.3.5 Monthly Cart Amortization Fee
For the Existing Participants, Contractor’s monthly fee to provide the carts based
upon the initial contract term from July 1, 2013, to June 30, 2020. MWA owns the
carts after the initial contract term. Amortization period is eighty-four (84) months.
Cart fee is not subject to the annual adjustment.

With regard to carts for the New Participants, as MWA is purchasing such carts,
there shall be no Monthly Cart Amortization Fee paid to Contractor for those carts.
For example, Contractor will charge MWA $7.60 per household per month. MWA
will charge the New Participants $8.34 per household per month, and retain the
remaining $0.74 per household per month to cover the expense of the carts for the
New Participants.

D. All other terms of the Agreement shall remain effective and enforceable as written.

METRO WASTE AUTHORITY: 

By:____________________________________________ 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

CONTRACTOR: 

ANKENY SANITATION, INC. 

By_____________________________________________ 

Page 24 of 96



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

May 20, 2020 
AGENDA ITEM 13 

ITEM:  
Approval of Recommendation of Executive Director’s FY 19/20 Performance Review and FY 
20/21 Salary Adjustment. 

SUMMARY:  
A performance review for the Executive Director was performed by the Chair of the Metro Waste 
Authority Board of Directors, Mark Holm, and a committee comprised of David Gisch, Threase 
Harms, and Vice Chair Ron Pogge. The review considered performance for FY 19/20 and a 
salary adjustment recommendation for FY 20/21. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Materials and information that were considered during the evaluation process were: 

• Performance evaluation form
• Current Executive Director job description
• Overall performance ratings

Thirteen performance reviews were submitted and reviewed. Overall performance ratings and 
comments were positive and indicated that Michael exceeded Board expectations for FY 19/20. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
After consideration of Michael’s outstanding performance for FY 19/20, it is recommended that 
Michael’s salary should be increased by 4.5% for FY 20/21. This is a contractual 
recommendation based on the fact that the majority of Michael’s overall performance ratings for 
FY 19/20 reflect “exceeds expectations.” A 4.5% increase will place his salary at $197,505.00. 

No other adjustments to Michael’s contract are recommended. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
This proposal will be funded from the approved FY 20/21 budget. 

CONTACT: 
Mark Holm, board chair 

Page 25 of 96



Metro Waste Authority Board  
Monthly Board Meeting 

May 20, 2020 
AGENDA ITEM 14 

ITEM:  
Approval of Amendment to Ground Lease and Operation Maintenance Agreement for 
Metropolitan Salt Storage Facility on Metro Waste Authority Property. 
 
SUMMARY:  
Metro Waste Authority (MWA) and the Cities of West Des Moines, Urbandale, Johnston, Clive, 
Windsor Heights, Waukee, Grimes, Des Moines, and Pleasant Hill have been parties to an 
agreement for the salt storage facility located on MWA property since August 2014. MWA gave 
notice of termination only to the City of Des Moines, electing to terminate the agreement on July 
24, 2020 and requiring the City of Des Moines to remove the ten thousand ton capacity building 
from the property. 
 
DISCUSSION POINTS: 
The agreement does not allow for MWA to terminate with only the City of Des Moines and not 
the other cities; however, the City of Des Moines has agreed to withdraw and provide a bill of 
sale to MWA, rescinding the notice of termination and allowing the City of Des Moines to leave 
the building on MWA property. Terms of the amended agreement are effective October 1, 2020. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Amendment to the Salt Storage Agreement 
 
CONTACT: 
Michael McCoy, executive director, 515.323.6535 

Page 26 of 96



Metro Waste Authority 
Amendment to Ground Lease and Operation Maintenance Agreement for Metropolitan 

Salt Storage Facility on Metro Waste Authority Property 
 

 
THIS AMENDMENT is made and entered into this ____ day of    , 2020, 

by and between Metro Waste Authority, an entity organized pursuant to Section 28E of the Iowa 
Code, (hereinafter referred to as "Authority" or “MWA”) and the Cities of West Des Moines, 
Urbandale, Johnston, Clive, Windsor Heights, Waukee, Grimes, Des Moines and Pleasant Hill 
(hereinafter, the “Cities”).  

 
WHEREAS, MWA and the Cities, are parties to the Ground Lease and Operation 

Maintenance Agreement for Metropolitan Salt Storage Facility on Metro Waste Authority Property 
dated August 7, 2014, by and among MWA, the City and the Cities of West Des Moines, 
Urbandale, Johnston, Clive, Windsor Heights, Waukee, Grimes, Des Moines and Pleasant Hill (the 
“Agreement”); and  

 
WHEREAS, MWA gave a Notice of Termination of Ground Lease and Operation 

Maintenance Agreement for Metropolitan Salt Storage Facility on Metro Waste Authority Property 
dated July 24, 2019, to Des Moines, indicating MWA was electing to terminate the Agreement on 
July 24, 2020; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Notice of Termination was only to Des Moines and not the other Cities, 

further indicating it was requiring Des Moines to remove the Des Moines’ ten thousand ton 
capacity salt storage building from the Leased Premises; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 3.02 of the Agreement provides that either MWA or the Cities may 

give a one year notice to terminate the Agreement, which termination shall be effective at the end 
of the one year notice; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agreement does not permit MWA to terminate the Agreement only as to 

Des Moines and not the other Cities; however Des Moines is willing to withdraw and provide a 
Bill of Sale to the Des Moines Building for the considerations set forth herein; including but not 
limited to MWA withdrawing and rescinding the Notice of Termination of Ground Lease and 
Operation Maintenance Agreement for Metropolitan Salt Storage Facility on Metro Waste 
Authority Property dated July 24, 2019 and for Des Moines being allowed to leave the Des Moines 
Building upon withdraw from the Agreement; and  

 
WHEREAS, MWA and the Cities desire to amend the Agreement as provided herein.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27 of 96



 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants given each to the 

other, the parties hereby acknowledge the following: 
 

 
1. Section 1.03, Identification of Exhibits is amended by replacing Exhibit “A” with 
the attached revised Exhibit “A” effective October 1, 2020. 

 
2. Section 3.02, Termination, is deleted and replaced with the following: 

 
At any time during the Term, either MWA or the Cities may give a one (1) year notice to 
terminate this Agreement, which termination shall be effective at the end of the one (1) 
year notice.  Any notice given by the Cities shall be given by the West Des Moines Public 
Works Director and shall include letters from each City requesting termination. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the Term, if Des Moines elects to withdraw from 
this Agreement or if one or more of the Shared Building Cities elects to forfeit its or their 
share of the Shared Building in accordance with Article 14 below, such City or Cities shall 
give MWA and the other Cities a one (1) year notice to terminate, which notice shall 
include only the City or Cities desiring to terminate this Agreement, and this Agreement 
shall continue with respect to the other remaining Cities. The costs and fees of this 
Agreement shall then be reallocated between the remaining Cities.  Notwithstanding, this 
Section, it is agreed between the parties that Des Moines withdraws from this Agreement 
effective October 1, 2020, that this Agreement shall continue as to the MWA and other 
remaining Cities and all costs and fees of this Agreement shall be reallocated between the 
Shared Cities.  MWA hereby withdraws and rescinds the Notice of Termination given to 
the City of Des Moines dated July 24, 2019. 
 
3. Section 4.02, Maintenance Fee Provisions, Paragraph A, is deleted and replaced 
with the following: 
 
A. Maintenance Fee.  Beginning on the Effective Date, each City shall pay a maintenance 
fee of one ($1.00) per ton of each City’s capacity storage in the Facility each remaining year 
of the Agreement (the “Maintenance Fee”).  Des Moines' payment shall be made to the Des 
Moines Maintenance Fee Account (as defined below) and the Shared Building Cities' 
payment shall be made to the Shared Building Cities Maintenance Fee Account (as defined 
below). Thereafter, the West Des Moines Public Works Director shall invoice each City 
annually by July 1st of each year of the Term for each City’s respective Maintenance Fee. 
The Cities shall pay such invoice within thirty (30) days of receipt of said invoice. Des Moines 
shall pay the prorata portion of the Maintenance Fee due July 1, 2020 for the months of 
July, August and September of 2020 only and shall owe no further Maintenance Fee or any 
other fees thereafter.   
 
 
 

Page 28 of 96



4. Section 4.02, Maintenance Fee Provisions, Paragraph F, is deleted and replaced 
with the following: 

 
F. Maintenance Fees Remaining if a City Withdraws from the Agreement.  100% of the 
Maintenance Fees and Interest in the Des Moines Maintenance Fee Account, as existing 
on September 30, 2020 shall be returned to Des Moines. If a Shared Building City 
withdraws from the Agreement pursuant to Article 14 herein, such Shared Building City 
shall forfeit any Maintenance Fees and interest paid into the Shared Building Cities 
Maintenance Fee Account. 

 
5. Section 4.02, Maintenance Fee Provisions, Paragraph G is deleted and replaced 
with the following: 

 
G. Maintenance Fees Remaining After Sale of Building. If the Shared Building Cities elect 
to sell the Shared Building, the Shared Building Cities shall forfeit 100% of the 
Maintenance Fees paid by the Shared Building Cities into the Shared Building Cities 
Maintenance Fee Account, and such funds shall be transferred to the purchaser of the 
Shared Building.  
  
6. Section 5.09, Condition of Property at Termination of Agreement, is deleted and 
replaced with the following: 
 
At the termination of this Agreement, the Shared Cities shall return the Leased Premises to 
its original condition.  The Shared Building Cities shall be required to remove the Shared 
Building from the Leased Premises.  The Cities shall not be required to remove any of the 
permanent infrastructures in place at the time of termination.    Des Moines shall leave the 
Des Moines Building on the Leased Premises at its withdraw from this Agreement effective 
October 1, 2020 and shall not be required to remove any of the permanent infrastructure in 
place at the time of termination.  For purposes of this Agreement, permanent infrastructure 
shall mean the paving and storm water improvements.  
 
7. Section 5.10, Insurance of Buildings, is deleted and replaced with the following:   
 
Des Moines shall procure and maintain full replacement insurance coverage on the Des 
Moines Building, including insurance covering the contents through September 30, 2020. 
After September 30, 2020, all risk of loss for the Des Moines Building and its contents 
shall belong to MWA.  The Shared Building Cities shall procure and maintain full 
replacement insurance coverage on the Shared Building, including insurance covering the 
contents. The cost of insuring the Shared Building shall be allocated between the Shared 
Building Cities in accordance with the Shared Building Allocated Salt Storage Capacity. 
The West Des Moines Public Works Director shall secure and bill the Shared Building 
Cities for the costs of insurance for full replacement value of the Shared Building and 
content insurance. Certificates of Insurance and/or letters of self-insurance citing such 
coverages, limits and endorsements shall be provided to MWA and the West Des Moines 
Public Works Director by Des Moines and the Shared Building Cities on an annual basis.  

 

Page 29 of 96



8. Section 10.01 Ownership of Buildings, is deleted and replaced with the following:

MWA and the Cities agree and acknowledge that (i) the Shared Building is under the 
ownership and possession of the Shared Building Cities, which ownership is allocated to 
the Shared Building Cities in accordance with the Shared Building Allocated Salt Storage 
Capacity; and (ii) the Des Moines Building is under the exclusive ownership and 
possession of Des Moines. Des Moines shall deliver a Bill of Sale for the Des Moines 
Building to MWA on October 1, 2020 at which time the Des Moines Building will be under 
the exclusive ownership and possession of MWA and shall be the sole obligation and 
responsibility of MWA. 

9. Section 10.03, Utilities, paragraph B deleted.

10. Section 11.01, Des Moines Building, is deleted and replaced with the following:

A. Fire or Casualty Occurring Before October 1, 2020.

If before October 1, 2020, the Des Moines Building is damaged by fire or other 
casualty, covered by the insurance Des Moines obtains pursuant to Section 5.10 
herein, Des Moines shall either cause such repairs to be made to the Des Moines 
Building or remove the Des Moines Building from the Leased Premises with 
the proceeds of the insurance secured as set forth in Section 5.10 of this 
Agreement. In the event the damage is not covered by Des Moines’ insurance, 
then in such instance the West Des Moines Public Works Director, upon written 
direction and concurrence by Des Moines as to whether the Des Moines 
Building shall be repaired or removed, shall cause such repairs to be made to 
the Des Moines Building or shall remove the Des Moines Building from the 
Leased Premises, using the proceeds from the Des Moines Maintenance Fee 
Account, and the following costs shall be charged to Des Moines, as applicable: 
(i) the cost of such repairs or replacement of the Des Moines Building, in excess
of the Des Moines Maintenance Fee Account, or (ii) the cost of removal of the
Des Moines Building from the Leased Premises in excess of  the Des Moines
Maintenance Fee Account. Des Moines shall have the right to use the Des
Moines Maintenance Fee Account for any insurance deductible Des Moines
shall have for any such fire or casualty, upon documentation of such deductible
by Des Moines.  The West Des Moines Public Works Director shall pay Des
Moines the deductible amount from the Des Moines Maintenance Fee Account,
upon submission of documentation of the deductible amount. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, Des Moines acknowledges and agrees that: (i) any repair,
replacement or removal of the Des Moines Building in the event of any fire or
other casualty shall be commenced within six (6) months of such fire or other
casualty, as applicable, and (ii) MWA shall not be responsible for any repair,
replacement or removal of the Des Moines Building in the event of any fire or
other casualty.

Page 30 of 96



 
B. Fire or Casualty Occurring After September 30, 2020. 
 

If the Des Moines Building is damaged by fire or other casualty after September 
30, 2020, it shall be the sole responsibility and obligation of the MWA to 
remove or repair the Des Moines Building.    

 
11. Section 14.01, Withdrawal by Des Moines, is deleted and replaced with the 
following: 
 
Des Moines withdraws from this Agreement effective October 1, 2020 and all costs of this 
Agreement shall be reallocated between the remaining Cities.   
 
12. Section 16.12, Intent of the Parties, is deleted and replaced with the following: 

 
It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that the operation of the Facility and the 
removal of the Buildings will be done without cost to MWA, unless said costs are 
reimbursed by the Cities as provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, it 
is understood that Des Moines shall leave the Des Moines building upon Des Moines 
withdraw from the Agreement effective on October 1, 2020.   
 
 

All other terms of the Agreement shall remain effective and enforceable as written. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31 of 96



DES MOINES METROPOLITAN AREA SOLID WASTE AGENCY D/B/A 
METRO WASTE AUTHORITY: 

By:____________________________________________ 
Chair, MWA Board 

Attest: 

Secretary, MWA Board 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF POLK ) 

On this _______ day of _____________________________, 20___, before a Notary Public in 
and for the Des Moines Metropolitan Wastewater Reclamation Authority, personally appeared 
Paul Moritz and Michael McCoy, to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that 
they are the Chair and Secretary, respectively of the Des Moines Metropolitan Wastewater 
Reclamation Authority, a legal entity created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, 
and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Authority, and that said 
instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said Authority by authority and resolution of its 
Board and said Chair and Secretary acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of 
said Authority by it voluntarily executed. 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

Page 32 of 96



CITY OF DES MOINES, IOWA 
 
 
By_____________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
         
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF POLK  ) 
 
On this _______ day of _____________________________, 20___, before a Notary Public in 
and for the City of     , personally appeared      and  
    , to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they 
are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively of the City of    , Iowa, a 
Municipality, created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to 
the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and 
sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City Council and said 
Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said 
Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33 of 96



CITY OF WEST DES MOINES, IOWA 
 
 
By_____________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
         
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF POLK  ) 
 
On this _______ day of _____________________________, 20___, before a Notary Public in 
and for the City of     , personally appeared      and  
    , to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they 
are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively of the City of    , Iowa, a 
Municipality, created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to 
the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and 
sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City Council and said 
Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said 
Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34 of 96



CITY OF URBANDALE, IOWA 
 
 
 
By_____________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
         
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF POLK  ) 
 
On this _______ day of _____________________________, 20___, before a Notary Public in 
and for the City of     , personally appeared      and  
    , to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they 
are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively of the City of    , Iowa, a 
Municipality, created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to 
the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and 
sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City Council and said 
Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said 
Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35 of 96



CITY OF JOHNSTON, IOWA 

By_____________________________________________ 

Attest: 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF POLK ) 

On this _______ day of _____________________________, 20___, before a Notary Public in 
and for the City of     , personally appeared      and  

, to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they 
are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively of the City of    , Iowa, a 
Municipality, created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to 
the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and 
sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City Council and said 
Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said 
Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

Page 36 of 96



CITY OF CLIVE, IOWA 

By_____________________________________________ 

Attest: 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF POLK ) 

On this _______ day of _____________________________, 20___, before a Notary Public in 
and for the City of     , personally appeared      and  

, to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they 
are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively of the City of    , Iowa, a 
Municipality, created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to 
the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and 
sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City Council and said 
Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said 
Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

Page 37 of 96



CITY OF WINDSOR HEIGHTS, IOWA 

By_____________________________________________ 

Attest: 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF POLK ) 

On this _______ day of _____________________________, 20___, before a Notary Public in 
and for the City of     , personally appeared      and  

, to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they 
are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively of the City of    , Iowa, a 
Municipality, created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to 
the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and 
sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City Council and said 
Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said 
Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

Page 38 of 96



CITY OF WAUKEE, IOWA 

By_____________________________________________ 

Attest: 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF POLK ) 

On this _______ day of _____________________________, 20___, before a Notary Public in 
and for the City of     , personally appeared      and  

, to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they 
are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively of the City of    , Iowa, a 
Municipality, created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to 
the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and 
sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City Council and said 
Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said 
Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

Page 39 of 96



 
CITY OF GRIMES, IOWA 
 
 
 
 
By_____________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
         
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF POLK  ) 
 
On this _______ day of _____________________________, 20___, before a Notary Public in 
and for the City of     , personally appeared      and  
    , to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they 
are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively of the City of    , Iowa, a 
Municipality, created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to 
the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and 
sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City Council and said 
Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said 
Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40 of 96



CITY OF PLEASANT HILL, IOWA 

By_____________________________________________ 

Attest: 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF POLK ) 

On this _______ day of _____________________________, 20___, before a Notary Public in 
and for the City of     , personally appeared      and  

, to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that they 
are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively of the City of    , Iowa, a 
Municipality, created and existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, and that the seal affixed to 
the foregoing instrument is the seal of said Municipality, and that said instrument was signed and 
sealed on behalf of said Municipality by authority and resolution of its City Council and said 
Mayor and City Clerk acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said 
Municipality by it voluntarily executed. 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

Page 41 of 96



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

May 20, 2020 
AGENDA ITEM 15 

ITEM: 
Approval of P-60 Building Expansion Proposal at Metro Park East Landfill. 

SUMMARY:  
Five (5) bids were received for construction and expansion of the Metro Park East building 4 
improvements and relocation of electrical panels. Accurate Commercial Construction is the 
recommended contractor with the lowest most responsive total alternate bid of $528,464.00. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Proposals were received from the following five (5) contractors: 

Contractor / Total Base Bid Cost / Total Alternate Cost 
Accurate Commercial / $523,464.00 / $528,464.00 
Absolute Solutions / $522,494.50 / $529,219.50 
K. Johnson Construction / $574,152.70 / $581,657.70
Woodruff Construction / $743,405.00 / $751,405.00
Edge Commercial / $1,034,467.50 / $1,044,967.50

Accurate Commercial Construction’s bid was reviewed by HDR. HDR’s review is provided in 
attachment B. Accurate Commercial Construction provided the lowest, most responsive total 
alternate bid. 

The construction/expansion generally includes: 
Retrofitting existing building with improvements, addition of three bays and associated site work. 
Addition of crushed rock pavement for bays and site (30,000 SF). 
Heating of existing three bays. 
Insulating existing walls for partitioned bays. 
Concrete floor for existing bays (5,000 SF). 
Electrical finishing and addition of services. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board accept the proposal from Accurate Commercial Construction 
for construction/expansion of Project P-60 Cold Storage Building 4 Improvements at the Metro 
Park East Landfill. Amount of award is $528,464.00. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The proposed construction/expansion pricing of $528,464.00 is over the budgeted amount of 
$509,000.00 for construction cost, by $19,494.00. The funds are available in the Capital 
Expense fund to accommodate the proposal.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment A – Accurate Commercial Construction Bid Proposal 
Attachment B – Bid Evaluation Letter with Tabulation 

Page 42 of 96



CONTACT: 
Judi Mendenhall, Director of Recycling & Diversion, 515.333.4430 

Page 43 of 96



Page 44 of 96



Page 45 of 96



Page 46 of 96



Page 47 of 96



Page 48 of 96



Page 49 of 96



Page 50 of 96



Page 51 of 96



Page 52 of 96



Page 53 of 96



Page 54 of 96



Page 55 of 96



Page 56 of 96



Page 57 of 96



Page 58 of 96



Page 59 of 96



Page 60 of 96



Page 61 of 96



Page 62 of 96



Page 63 of 96



Page 64 of 96



Page 65 of 96



Page 66 of 96



Page 67 of 96



Page 68 of 96



Page 69 of 96



Page 70 of 96



Page 71 of 96



Page 72 of 96



Page 73 of 96



Page 74 of 96



Page 75 of 96



Page 76 of 96



Page 77 of 96



Page 78 of 96



Page 79 of 96



Page 80 of 96



Page 81 of 96



Page 82 of 96



Page 83 of 96



Page 84 of 96



Page 85 of 96



Page 86 of 96



Page 87 of 96



Page 88 of 96



Page 89 of 96



Page 90 of 96



Page 91 of 96



Page 92 of 96



Page 93 of 96



 

hdrinc.com  

 1917 S 67th StreetOmaha, NE  68106-2973 
(402) 399-1000 

 

 

 

May 19, 2020 

Mr. Michael McCoy 

Executive Director 

Metro Waste Authority 

300 East Locust Street 

Des Moines, IA 50309 

 

RE:   Bid Review and Evaluation 

MWA Project P-60 – Cold Storage Building 4 Improvements  

 

Dear Mr. McCoy: 

 

At Metro Waste Authority’s (MWA’s) request, HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR) has completed a technical 

review and evaluation of the Bid Forms and supplemental information for the MWA Project P-60 – 

Cold Storage Building 4 Improvements, which were furnished to HDR on May 15, 2020.  There were 

five bids received, with total base bid prices ranging from $522,494.50 to $1,034,467.50. Based on 

the alternate bid item of relocation the electrical panel south of Cold Storage Building 4, the total bid 

prices (base bid plus alternate bid item no. 105) ranged from $528,464.00 to $1,044,967.50.  The 

construction budget for the project indicated by MWA was $509,000.00 which is approximately 2.6 

percent lower than the low base bid and 3.7 percent lower than the low total bid. The lowest 

responsive bid was submitted by Accurate Commercial Construction (Accurate).  

 

HDR has reviewed the price calculations and summaries on the Bid Forms from all Bidders. Errors 

were found in the Bid Form calculations by three of the five bidders. Accurate’s Bid Form contained 

no errors or irregularities.  

 

The firms submitting bids included many of the firms who HDR would typically expect to bid on a pole 

building type construction project in this regional geography and the number of bids received is a 

good indication of a competitive bidding environment.  Each bidder acknowledged the receipt of the 

two addenda.   

 

For the apparent low bidder based on total bid price, HDR also reviewed Section 00 45 10 - 

Qualifications Statement.  During this review, no significant irregularities or errors were identified and 

HDR considers the Qualification Statement submitted by Accurate to be satisfactory. HDR reviewed 

the Bid Bonds submitted by each of the five bidders. Each Bid Bond included a Bid security of five 

(5) percent of the maximum Bid price, therefore, the Bid Bond portion of each bid was found to be 

satisfactory.  

 

Accurate has previously performed building construction type work within the Des Moines area. In 

reviewing the in-depth evaluation of reference checks for the projects Accurate included within their 

bid, HDR has concluded that Accurate is a relatively large regional firm, which has completed building 

Page 94 of 96



Metro Waste Authority | P-60 Cold Storage Building 4 Improvements 
Bid Review and Evaluation  

 

2 

type construction projects of a size and complexity similar to MWA Project P-60 in the past five (5) 

years.  Based on the list of references provided by Accurate that were able to be reached, it was 

reported that Accurate has completed numerous projects with positive results for each reference 

since 2015. In addition, it was noted by past project references that Accurate would be ideal to work 

with again with confidence regarding project price, responsiveness, and project delivery. None of the 

references provided indicated that Accurate has any reason to be considered a non-responsible 

bidder. Based on the information provided in the bid documents, HDR has concluded that Accurate 

has the experience and ability to provide the required services (e.g., is a responsible bidder). 

 

Based upon the above technical evaluations and the attached Bid Tabulation, HDR has concluded 

that Accurate is the lowest, responsive, responsible bidder for MWA’s P-60 Cold Storage Building 4 

Improvements Project based on the total bid price.  

 

Please do not hesitate to contact me at (402) 399-1210 if you require additional clarification or 

information.  

Sincerely, 

HDR Engineering, Inc. 

 

 

 

Garrett Williams, P.E. 

Project Manager 

 

Attachments:  Bid Tabulation 

   

 

 

Page 95 of 96



Bid Unit Price Bid Price Bid Unit Price Bid Price Bid Unit Price Bid Price Bid Unit Price Bid Price Bid Unit Price Bid Price

101

Mobilization, demobilization, and all work not 

included in Bid Item Nos. 102, 103, and 104. 1                LS 25,875.00$        25,875.00$        387,325.00$      387,325.00$      139,425.00$      139,425.00$      16,950.00$        16,950.00$        105,000.00$      105,000.00$      

102

Cold Storage Building 4 Design, Material Supply, and 

Installation. 1                LS 443,120.00$      443,120.00$      77,052.00$        77,052.00$        788,500.00$      788,500.00$      500,007.00$      500,007.00$      558,322.00$      558,322.00$      

103

Project Allowance (10% of Base Bid = Item No.'s 

101+102+104). 1                LS 47,499.50$        47,499.50$        47,587.00$        47,587.00$        94,042.50$        94,042.50$        52,195.70$        52,195.70$        67,583.00$        67,583.00$        

104 Remove/Replace Unsuitable Soils. 500            CY 12.00$                6,000.00$          23.00$                11,500.00$        25.00$                12,500.00$        10.00$                5,000.00$          25.00$                12,500.00$        

105

Bid Alternate Item No. 1 - Relocate Existing 

Electrical Panel and Appurtenances. 1                LS 6,725.00$          6,725.00$          5,000.00$          5,000.00$          10,500.00$        10,500.00$        7,505.00$          7,505.00$          8,000.00$          8,000.00$          

MWA P-60 Cold Storage Building 4 Improvements - Bid Tabulation

528,464.00$                                     1,044,967.50$                                  581,657.70$                                     751,405.00$                                     Total Alternate Bid (Base Bid + Alternate Bid Item No. 105)

Item No. Bid Items

Estimated 

Quantity Unit

529,219.50$                                     

Total Base Bid 522,494.50$                                     523,464.00$                                     1,034,467.50$                                  574,152.70$                                     743,405.00$                                     

Absolute Group Accurate Commercial Edge K. Johnson Construction Woodruff Construction

Page 96 of 96


	Board Memo -pgs. 1 & 2
	Agenda - pgs. 3 & 4
	Agenda Item 5: Minutes of April 2020 Board Meeting - pgs. 5-8
	Agenda Item 7: April 2020 Expenditures - pgs. 9-12
	Agenda Item 8: ASI MSW Extension - pgs. 13 & 14
	Agenda Item 9: WM MSW Extension - pgs. 15 & 16
	Agenda Item 10: WC MSW Extension - pgs. 17 & 18
	Agenda Item 11: Tire Collection Agreement - pgs. 19 & 20
	Agenda Item 12: ASI Amendment - pgs. 21-24
	Agenda Item 13: Executive Director Review - pg. 25
	Agenda Item 14: Salt Storage Facility - pgs. 26-41
	Agenda Item 15: P-60 Building 4 Expansion Proposal - pgs. 42-96



